Third United Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea

1973-1982
Concluded at Montego Bay, Jamaica on 10 December 1982

Document:-
A/CONF.62/ SR.7

Summary Records of Plenary Meetings
7" plenary meeting

Extract from the Official Records of the Third United Nations Conference on the Law of
the Sea, Volume | (Summary Records of Plenary Meetings of the First and Second Sessions, and
of Meetings of the General Committee, Second Session)

Copyright © United Nations
2009



List of Documents

7th meeting—12 December 1973 17

7th meeting

Wednesday, 12 December 1973, at 4.40 p.m.

President: Mr. H. S. AMERASINGHE (Sri Lanka).

Election of officers

1. The PRESIDENT suggested that the officers should be
elected in the following order: The Chairmen of the three Main
Committees; the Chairman of the Drafting Committee; the
Rapporteur-General; the Vice-Chairmen and Rapporteurs of
the three Main Committees; the 31 Vice-Presidents of the Con-
ference.

2. Mr. ZOTIADES (Greece) suggested that, in accordance
with the procedure followed by several international bodies,
the Conference should first elect its Vice-Presidents, then the
Chairmen of the Main Committees, the Rapporteur-General
and the Vice-Chairmen of the Main Committees.

3. The PRESIDENT said that the order he had suggested
was consistent with normal United Nations practice. Further-
more, the agenda provided for the elections to be held in that
order; the only innovation was the election of the Rapporteur-
General.

4. Mr. ZOTIADES (Greece) said thatin a spirit of accommo-
dation he would not press his suggestion, but he thought that
there was nothing in the rules of procedure to say that the
election of the Chairmen of the Main Committees should pre-
cede the election of the Vice-Presidents of the Conference.

5. The PRESIDENT said that if there was no other objec-
tion, he would take it that the Conference accepted the order he
had suggested.

It was so decided:

6. The PRESIDENT suggested that, in view of the number
and complexity of the elections, the Conference should dis-
pense with formal nominations. In many cases there would be
no need to vote because the Conference had already agreed
that when the number of nominations put forward by a re-
gional group equalled the number of seats allocated to it, the
election would be by acclamation.

7. Mr. BAKULA (Peru) said that in the view of his delega-
tion the Conference should observe the principle of one State,
one seat.
8. The PRESIDENT said that the delegation of Peru could
cast its vote or make any reservations as it wished.
9. If there was no objection, he would take it that the Confer-
ence accepted the procedure he had outlined.

It was so decided.
10. Mr. JEANNEL (France) said that his delegation had
noted the wide feeling in the Conference in favour of single
candidacies. Accordingly, if the French nominee was elected to
one of the vice-presidencies, his delegation would withdraw its
candidacy to the Drafting Committee.
11.  Sir Roger JACKLING (United Kingdom) said that his
delegation took the same position as the French delegation.

Election of the Chairmen of the Main Committees
12, The PRESIDENT said that the chairmanship of the First



List of Documents

18 First Session~—Plenary Meetings

Committee had been allocated to the African group; the only
nominee was Mr. Engo (Cameroon).

Mr. P. B. Fngo (Cameroon) was elected Chairman of the
First Committee by acclamation.

3. The PRESIDENT said that the chairmanship of the
Second Committee had been allocated to the Latin American
group; the only nominee was Mr. Aguilar (Venezuela).

Mr. A. Aguilar (Venezuela) was elected Chairman of the
Second Committee by acclamation.
14. The PRESIDENT said that the chairmanship of the
Third Committee had been allocated to the Eastern European
group; the only nominee was Mr. Yankov (Bulgaria).

Mr. A. Yankov (Bulgaria) was elected Chairman of the
Third Committee by acclamation.

Election of the Chairman of the Drafting Committee

15. The PRESIDENT said that the chairmanship of the
Drafting Committee had been allocated to the group of
Western European and other States; the nominees were Mr.
Beesley (Canada) and Mr. Harry (Australia).

At the invitation of the President, Mr. Ouangmotching
(Chad) and Mr. Giambruno (Uruguay) acted as tellers.

A vote was taken by secret ballot.

Number of ballot papers: 136
Invalid ballots: 0
Number of valid ballots: 136
Abstentions: |
Number of members voting: 135
Required majority: 68
Number of votes obtained:

Mr. Beesley (Canada) .......coovvvnnveennen 81

Mr. Harry (Australia)....................... 54

Having obtained the required majority, Mr. J. A. Beesley
(Canada) was elected Chairman of the Drafting Committee.

Election of the Rapporteur-General

16. The PRESIDENT said that the office of Rapporteur-
General had been allocated to the Latin American group; the
only nominee was Mr. Rattray (Jamaica).

Mr. K O. Rattray (Jamaica) was elected Rapporteur-
General by acclamation.

FElection of the Vice-Chairmen and Rapporteurs
of the three Main Committees

17. The PRESIDENT said that the nominees to the three
vice-chairmanships of the First Committee were Brazil, the
German Democratic Republic and Japan.

Brazil, the German Democratic Republic and Japan were
elected Vice-Chairmen of the First Committee by acclamation.
18. The PRESIDENT said that there were two nominations
to the office of Rapporteur of the First Committee: Mr. La-
pointe (Canada) and Mr. Mott (Australia).

19. Mr. LAPOINTE (Canada) withdrew his candidacy.

Mr. H. C. Mott (Australia) was elected Rapporteur of the
First Committee by acclamation.

20. The PRESIDENT said that the nominees to the three
vice-chairmanships of the Second Committee were Czechoslo-
vakia, Kenya and Turkey.

Czechoslovakia, Kenya and Turkey were elected Vice-
Chairmen of the Second Committee by acclamation.

21. The PRESIDENT said that Mr. Nandan (Fiji) had been
nominated to the office of Rapporteur of the Second Commit-
tee.

Mr. S. N. Nandan (Fiji) was elected Rapporteur of the
Second Committee by acclamation.

22. The PRESIDENT said that the nominees to the three
vice-chairmanships of the Third Committee were Colombia,
Cyprus and the Federal Republic of Germany.

Colombia, Cyprus and the Federal Republic of Germany
were elected Vice-Chairmen of the Third Committee by accla-
mation.

23. The PRESIDENT said that Mr. Hassan (Sudan) had
been nominated to the office of Rapporteur of the Third Com-
mittee.

Mr. A. M. A. Hassan (Sudan) was elected Rapporteur of the
Third Committee by acclamation.

Election of Vice- Presidents

24, The PRESIDENT invited the Conference to proceed to
the election of 31 Vice-Presidents. In accordance with a Con-
ference decision, the group of African States had been allo-
cated nine vice-presidencies. The group had submitted the fol-
lowing nine nominations: Algeria, Egypt, Liberia, Madagas-
car, Nigeria, Tunisia, Uganda, Zaire and Zambia.

Algeria, Egypt, Liberia, Madagascar, Nigeria, Tunisia,
Uganda, Zaire and Zambia were elected Vice- Presidents by
acclamation.

25. The PRESIDENT recalled that the group of Asian States
had been allocated eight vice-presidencies. The group had sub-
mitted the following eight nominations: China, Indonesia,
Iran, Iraq, Kuwait, Nepal, Pakistan and Singapore.

China, Indonesia, Iran, Iraq, Kuwait, Nepal, Pakistan and
Singapore were elected Vice- Presidents by acclamation.

26. The PRESIDENT recalled that the group of Eastern
European States had been allocated three vice-presidencies.
The group had submitted the following three nominations:
Poland, the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics and
Yugoslavia.

Poland, the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics and Yugo-
slavia were elecied Vice- Presidents by acclamation.

27. The PRESIDENT recalled that the group of Latin Amer-
ican States had been allocated five vice-presidencies. The group
had submitted the following five nominations: Bolivia, Chile,
Dominican Republic, Peru, Trinidad and Tobago.

Bolivia, Chile, Dominican Republic, Peru and Trinidad and
Tobago were elected Vice- Presidents by acclamation.

28. The PRESIDENT, referring to the vice-presidencies allo-
cated to the group of Western European and other States,
recalled the understanding of the four other regional groups
that any candidature of the United States of America would be
accommodated within the quota allocated to the group of
Western European and other States.

29. Mr. KNOKE (Federal Republic of Germany), speaking
as Chairman of the group of Western European and other
States, announced that, in order to reduce the number of can-
didatures from the group, Ireland had undertaken to withdraw
its candidature in favour of Belgium, on the understanding that
the two delegations would alternate in occupying the post.

30. The PRESIDENT observed that 10 nominations had
been received for six posts of Vice-President. Accordingly, he
invited the Conference to proceed to a secret ballot.

At the invitation of the President, Mr. OQuangmotching
(Chad) and Mr. Giambruno (Uruguay) acted as tellers.

A vote was taken by secret ballot.

Number of ballot papers: 137
Invalid ballots: 0
Number of valid ballots: 137
Abstentions: 0
Number of members voting: 137
Required majority: 69
Number of votes obtained:
France........oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieinenn, 109
United States of America................... 107
Norway .. ..ottt i i e 104
Belgium .............. i, 100
United Kingdom of Great Britain
and NorthernlIreland .................... 99



List of Documents

7th meeting—12 December 1973 19
leeland ........ ... i i, 96 the United States of America, as permanent members of the
Italy. ...t e 95 Security Council, bore primary responsibility for the mainte-
GIEECE ..ttt iiiiie e i teinnnennan 73 nance of peace and security. That special responsibility carried
Ireland ......... o i 2 with it certain rights, which were recognized both in the United
AUSITIA ot iii i et anane., 1 Nations Charter and in international practice. Thus, in all

Having obtained the required majority, Belgium, France,
Iceland, Norway, the United Kingdom of Great Britain and
Northern Ireland and the United States of America were
elected Vice- Presidents.

Appointment of other members of the Drafting Committee

31. Mr. KNOKE (Federal Republic of Germany), speaking in
his capacity as Chairman of the group of Western European
and other States, requested a suspension of the meeting to
allow his group to reach final agreement on its list of candi-
dates for membership of the Drafting Committee.

32. The PRESIDENT said that, if he heard no objection, he
would take it that the Conference agreed to accede to that
request.

It was so decided.

The meeting was suspended at 6.40 p.m. and resumed at
7p.m.
33. The PRESIDENT said that six seats on the Drafting
Committee had been allocated to the group of African States.
That group had submitted the following six nominations:
Ghana, Lesotho, Mauritania, Mauritius, Sierra Leone and the
United Republic of Tanzania.

Ghana, Lesotho, Mauritania, Mauritius, Sierra Leone and
the United Republic of Tanzania were appointed members of
the Drafting Committee by acclamation.

34. The PRESIDENT recalled that six seats on the Drafting
Committee had been allocated to the group of Asian States.

35. Mr. HADDAD (Lebanon), speaking in his capacity as
Chairman of the group of Asian States, informed the Confer-
ence that Thailand had withdrawn its candidature in favour of
Bangladesh in respect of the year 1974, on the understanding
that Bangladesh would be replaced by Thailand for 1975.

36. The PRESIDENT noted that the following six nomina-
tions for membership of the Drafting Committee had been
received from the group of Asian States: Afghanistan, Ban-
gladesh, India, Malaysia, the Philippines and Syria.

Afghanistan, Bangladesh, India, Malaysia, the Philippines
and Syria were appointed members of the Drafting Commilttee
by acclamation.

37. The PRESIDENT recalled that two seats on the Drafting
Committee had been allocated to the group of Eastern Euro-
pean States. That group had submitted the following two
nominations: Romania and the Union of Soviet Socialist Re-
publics.

Romania and the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics were
appointed members of the Drafting Committee by acclama-
tion.

38. Mr. BAKULA (Peru) said that he wished to put on rec-
ord his delegation’s exclusive support for candidates from
countries which did not occupy seats on the bureau of the
Drafting Committee. That view was based on the principle
adopted at the previous meeting that no State could be repre-
sented on the bureau of more than one main body of the Con-
ference.

39. Mr. LING Ching (China) said that, on the basis of his
delegation’s understanding of the principle set out by the Presi-
dent at the previous meeting, it wished to reserve its position in
connexion with the fact that the USSR, despite having been
elected to the office of Vice-President, had put forward its
candidature for membership of the Drafting Committee. Sim-
ilar actions in respect of the other Committees would also
cause his delegation to reserve its position.

40. Mr. KOLESNIK (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics)
said that China, France, the USSR, the United Kingdom and

international conferences affecting international security, in-
cluding the codification of international law, the permanent
members of the Security Council were given key offices.

41. The PRESIDENT reiterated the principle he had formu-
lated at the 6th meeting, namely that no State should as of right
be represented on more than one organ of the Conference.

42. Mr. GRINBERG (Bulgaria), speaking as Chairman of
the Eastern European group, said that he had been surprised
by the interpretation put on that principle by some speakers,
for it was obvious that there could be no intention of prevent-
ing any State from holding more than one office if the regional
group concerned so wished. A very important understanding
had been reached during informal consultations and at the
present preparatory session of the Conference itself, namely,
that no regional group would impose its views on any other
regional group.

43. The PRESIDENT said that four seats had been allocated
to the Latin American group; the nominees were Argentina,
Ecuador, El Salvador and Mexico.

Argentina, Ecuador, El Salvador and Mexico were ap-
pointed members of the Drafting Committee.

44. The PRESIDENT said that five seats had been allocated
to the group of Western European and other States. However,
since Mr. Beesley (Canada) had already been elected Chairman
of the Drafting Committee, four seats remained to be filled.
The nominees were Austria, Italy, the Netherlands, Spain and
the United States of America.

45. Mr. RIPHAGEN (Netherlands) announced that, if ap-
pointed, the Netherlands would fulfil its functions during the
Caracas session of the Conference and would then withdraw in
favour of Austria in respect of the following session in Vienna.

46. Mr. GLEISSNER (Austria) said that in view of the state-
ment by the Netherlands representative, his country wished to
withdraw its candidacy.

Italy, the Netherlands, Spain and the United States of
America were appointed members of the Drafting Committee.

47. Mr. ARIAS SCHREIBER (Peru) said that his delega-
tion’s comments on the Eastern European group applied also
to the Western European group. His delegation supported only
those candidates which did not already hold key posts. With
regard to the statement by the USSR representative, he said
that the Charter did indeed confer special responsibilities on
the permanent members of the Security Council in respect of
the maintenance of peace and security, but only within the
Council and collectively. Nowhere in the Charter was reference
made to the special responsibilities of the permanent members
of the Council outside that body or individually.

48. Miss FLOURET (Argentina) said that her delegation had
agreed to the candidates selected by the regional groups even
though in some cases two key offices had been allocated to the
same State. However, it could not endorse the view that the
privileges which the five great Powers had reserved for them-
selves in San Francisco should be extended to the current
international conference or any others that were convened by
the United Nations.

Appointment of the Credentials Committee

49. The PRESIDENT suggested that the following States
should be appointed to membership of the Credentials Com-
mittee: Austria, China, Greece, Hungary, Japan, Nicaragua,
Senegal, United Republic of Tanzania and Uruguay. The
pattern of membership was based on that for the Credentials
Committee appointed for the twenty-eighth session of the Gen-
eral Assembly, with two changes.



List of Documents

20 First Session — Plenary Meetings

50. After a brief exchange of views in which Mr. WARIOBA
(United Republic of Tanzania), Mr. ZELAYA (Nicaragua),
Miss FLOURET (Argentina), the PRESIDENT, Mr. OF-
WONO (Uganda), Mr. LING Ching (China) and Mr. SUGI-
HARA (Japan) participated, Mr. DJALAL (Indonesia), sup-

ported by Mr. HADDAD (Lebanon), proposed that the
meeting should be adjourned to allow time for discussions in
the regional groups.

It was so decided.
The meeting rose at 7.30 p.m.



	Main Menu
	List of Documents
	How to use List of Documents

	Master File
	How to use Master File

	Other Materials
	I. Preface
	II. Document Symbols
	III. Full-text Search
	IV. Tables
	A. GA Resolutions
	B. Conference Sessions
	C. Documents by Session
	D. Contents by Volume
	E. Negotiating Texts
	F. Chronology - LOS



	Main: 


